
 
 

 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Friday, 2nd July, 2021, 1.30 pm   
 
Members: Councillors Zena Brabazon 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

3. CHESTNUTS PRIMARY SCHOOL - EXTERNAL ENVELOPE AND 
BUILDING SERVICES IMPROVEMENT - AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT  (PAGES 1 - 8) 
 

4. LORDSHIP LANE PRIMARY SCHOOL - BUILDING SERVICES 
IMPROVEMENT AND EXTERNAL ENVELOPE WORKS - AWARD OF 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  (PAGES 9 - 16) 
 

5. WEST GREEN PRIMARY SCHOOL - BUILDING SERVICES 
IMPROVEMENT AND EXTERNAL ENVELOPE WORKS - AWARD OF 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  (PAGES 17 - 24) 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Items 7-9 are likely to be subject to a motion to exclude the press and public 
from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local 



 

Government Act 1985); paragraph 3, information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)  
 

7. EXEMPT - CHESTNUTS PRIMARY SCHOOL - EXTERNAL ENVELOPE 
AND BUILDING SERVICES IMPROVEMENT - AWARD OF 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  (PAGES 25 - 26) 
 

8. EXEMPT - LORDSHIP LANE PRIMARY SCHOOL - BUILDING SERVICES 
IMPROVEMENT AND EXTERNAL ENVELOPE WORKS - AWARD OF 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  (PAGES 27 - 28) 
 

9. EXEMPT - WEST GREEN PRIMARY SCHOOL - BUILDING SERVICES 
IMPROVEMENT AND EXTERNAL ENVELOPE WORKS - AWARD OF 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  (PAGES 29 - 30) 
 
 

 
Felicity Foley 
Committees Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2919 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email – felicity.foley@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Thursday, 24 June 2021 
 



 

 
 
Page 1 
 

 
Report for Cabinet Member Signing, scheduled for 2nd July 2021 
 
Title: Chestnuts Primary School – External Envelope and Building Services Improvement – 
Award of Construction Contract 

   
Report authorised by: Director Children’s Services, Ann Graham 
  
Lead Officer:  Chris Hill, Major Projects Project Manager  
Email: Chris Hill@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward affected: St Anns 
 
Report for Key/Non-Key Decision: Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 To request approval to award a contract to Kind Diamond Build Consortium Ltd up to 

the value of £4,060,282.22 to undertake external envelope and building services 
improvement works at Chestnuts Primary School pursuant to contract standing order 
16.02. 
 

1.2 Pursuant to Contract Standing Order (CSO) 16.02 to approve the issuance of a letter of 
intent. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction  

2.1 As this report is being presented to Cabinet Member Children, Education and Families for a 
decision, Cabinet Member introduction is not required. 

 
3. Recommendations 

 

For Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Families pursuant to Contract Standing 
Order 16.02 to: 
 

3.1 Approve an award of contract to Kind Diamond Build Consortium Ltd to the value of 
£3,691,165.66.  

 
3.2 Approve a contingency allowance of 10% that equates to £369,116.56 which will be 

strictly managed under change control governance arrangements. 
 

3.3 Approve the issuance of a letter of intent for up to 10% of the contract value, totalling 
£369,116.56. 
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

 
 
Page 2 

 

4.1 A major review of the condition and suitability of the Children’s Services estate has been 
undertaken which has informed the Children’s Service’s asset management plan 
(CSAMP).  This identified condition and suitability deficiencies in the primary, secondary, 
and wider Children’s Service estate need addressing in the short, medium, and long-
term.   

 
4.2 Chestnuts Primary School is high priority for major works due to issues relating to health 

and safety or the school is at risk of school closure. 
 
4.2 In 2019 a commission was given to further investigate and address urgent works relating 

to the condition of building services (i.e. heating, electrics and plumbing), external 
envelope (i.e. roofs, windows) and boundary security.  
 

4.3 The scheme has been granted an allocation of funding £0.262m from the public sector 
decarbonisation programme, a government initiative sponsored by the Department for 
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by Salix (Salix works). The 
grant will be used to part fund the scheme thus reducing the amount of borrowing that 
the Council will need to undertake. The terms of the grant are that the relevant works 
need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. If this date is missed, then there is a 
risk that the grant allocation will need to be repaid. 
 

4.4  A scheme for Chestnuts Primary School has been developed, with sectional completion 
dates in order to achieve the following:  

 

 Salix Public Sector Decarbonisation grant funding works (Window replacement, 
LED Lighting, Loft Insulation, Building Management System). 

 Boiler and heating works completion prior to the heating season starting in 
October. 

 Decant classroom spaces completed prior to the start of the September term. 

 Roof replacement, brick repointing, small power and data  
 

4.5 This construction award report requests a decision on the procurement of a contractor to 
undertake all of the external envelope and building services infrastructure works 
identified, designed and approved by the project sponsor. 

 
4.6 A Cabinet Member decision is required in July 2021 to enable timely mobilisation and 

facilitate procurement of longer lead in materials as soon as possible which will offer 
greater likelihood of achieving maximum grant funding available.  

 
5. Alternative Options Considered 

 
5.1 Do nothing – a decision not to support this award of construction contract will result in 

the Councils failure to suitably maintain its education estate by undertaking essential 
condition improvements. This would increase the likelihood of reactive works which will 
create greater disruption and cost to the council and potentially result in the loss of 
education days. All of which would undoubtedly impact on the quality of teaching and 
learning. 

 

Page 2



 

 
 
Page 3 

 

5.2  Delaying a decision until 13th July 2021 Cabinet would add additional time to the 
programme. Not being able to award contracts and place orders at the earliest 
opportunity would severely increase the risk of: 
 

 Not achieving the criteria for the completion of carbon grant funded works (before 
30th Sept 2021) with the risk of lost funding.  

 Not having sufficient time to build and complete the decant classroom spaces. 

 Failing to complete the heating works prior to the Heating season starting will result 
in increased costs borne to the council for temporary boilers. 

 Delaying the completion of the scaffold erection until after the start of the September 
term, thus resulting in an increased H&S risk to the children and adults on site. 

 Reducing our summer holiday working window by a minimum of 4 weeks which will 
not allow us the opportunity to maximise the school summer holiday period and utilise 
the existing nursery building as decant space.  

 
6. Background Information 
 
6.1  London Borough of Haringey (Haringey) are seeking to identify and address building 

condition and suitability issues across the Education/schools estate. 
 

6.2 Initial condition and suitability surveys followed by comprehensive feasibility studies 
have evolved an extensive Children’s Capital Programme which seeks to support 
essential condition improvements across the education estate. 

 
6.3 From this data, Chestnuts Primary School was considered high priority and as a result 

was placed in wave 1 of the programme and is 1 of 8 primary school’s sites in this initial 
wave of essential condition work.  

 

6.4 This condition project will bring a number of benefits to the school and the council, with 
the primary objective of providing improved educational environments for Children in line 
with Haringey’s borough plan. Along with improving educational outcomes, this project 
will significantly reduce the risk of a health and safety incident or school closure through 
condition failure, such as mechanical plant breakdown or roof leaks. The project will also 
help the school reduce its energy demands and relieve some budgetary pressure.  

 

6.5 Alongside this it will support the Borough’s carbon reduction and climate change 
ambition by delivering approx. 19.32 tCO2pa carbon reduction through the installation 
of energy efficient measures such as double glazing and roof insulation.  This work also 
benefits the Council in reducing the reactive maintenance requirements at the school in 
future by economically fixing the root cause of the condition issues within a single project 
whilst avoiding additional temporary repairs costs. To enable these works, the Council 
successfully secured external funding from the government (through SALIX funding) to 
a value of £261,890. 
 

 

6.6 The works have been designed to Stage 4 of the Royal Institute of British Architects 
(RIBA) Plan of Work 2013. 

 

Page 3



 

 
 
Page 4 

 

6.7 As part of the RIBA stage 2-4 design the following surveys and investigations have been 
completed: 

 

 Drone Survey 

 Acoustic Survey 

 Measured Survey 

 Roof Survey 

 Investigation to roof voids  

 Temporary accommodation survey 

 Asbestos R&D survey  

 Window and external door surveys  

 ICT Survey 
 

6.8 Whilst a range of surveys have been carried out in the preparation of the tender 
documents for this refurbishment scheme, they will never provide absolute certainty as 
to the condition of the building. Therefore, a contingency has been allowed for in the 
budget and its use will be carefully monitored and reported upon during the projects 
progress. 

 
6.9 Following completion of a full RIBA 4 design, the tender was issued to the construction 

market via the HPCS, under the London Construction Programme (LCP) Framework.  
Under Lot 2.1b (Education and Leisure – North London - £1m-£5m) 9 contractors were 
invited, with 3 tenders received on the 17/05/21. All tenders have been evaluated on a 
40% quality and 60% cost split by an independent evaluation panel. The results of this 
assessment are below: 

 

Tenderer Price Price 
Score 
(60%) 

Moderated 
Quality 
Score 
(40%) 

Combined 
Cost and 
Quality Score 

Final Ranking 

Kind 
Diamond 
Consortium 
Ltd 

£3,691,165.66 60% 32.8% 92.8% 1 

 
6.10 The assessment concludes with a recommendation to award a construction contract to 

Kind Diamond Consortium Ltd up to the value of £3,691,165.66 (excluding construction 
contingency). 
 

6.11 The construction costs given reflect the design in response of the adaptations for service 
delivery and condition issues as it’s an existing building there is always a risk assumption 
made may be incorrect as we do not have full historic information of the existing building. 
 

6.12 All works have been specified and measured by independent design and cost 
consultants to ensure best value for the Council against pre-determined market rates. 

 

Page 4



 

 
 
Page 5 

 

6.13 The total projected cost of the scheme is set out in the table below and compared to 

the budget. 

 Total projected cost 

Construction £3,691,165.66 

Other £1,273,341.34 

Total £4,964,507 

 
 

7 Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 
 

7.1 This project proposal supports outcomes as outlined in the Borough Plan 2019-23, in 
particular: 
 
All projects commissioned by Officers of the Council are expected to align with this plan 
and will be reflected in key capital project documentation such as project briefs, design 
briefs, business cases, project initiation documents (PID) and award reports. The 
relevant Borough Outcome for this project is: People - our vision is a Haringey where 
strong families, strong networks and strong communities nurture all residents to live well 
and achieve their potential. 

 
7.2  Chestnuts Primary School falls into wave 1 (priority 1) of the Children’s Service’s asset 

management plan (CSAMP) and is therefore procured in accordance with the priorities 
set out in the Children’s Capital Programme.  

 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer, Procurement, Corporate 

Governance, Equalities). 
 
8.1  Finance 

8.1 1  The recommendation of this report is to award a contract to Kind Diamond Consortium 
Ltd in the sum of £3.6921m for the works. A client construction contingency is also 
recommended with a value of £0.369m. In addition to this contract sum, there will be 
other costs in delivering the scheme. These are PM fees, design fees, QS fees, 
contingencies, statutory costs and sundry other costs of £1.273m. The estimated total 
cost of the scheme is £4.965m which can be contained within the overall Children’s 
Service approved 2021/22 capital programme. 
 
 
 

8.1.2 The spend profile for the project is set out in the table below: 
 

 Prior years 
expenditure 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
 

Total 

Projected 
Total 

£0.281 £2.876m £1.718m £0.09 £4.965m 

Page 5



 

 
 
Page 6 

 

 
 

8.1.3   The scheme has been granted an allocation of funding £0.261m from the public sector 
decarbonisation programme, a government initiative sponsored by the Department for 
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by Salix. The terms of the 
grant are that the relevant works need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. If 
this date is missed, then there is a risk that the grant allocation will need to be repaid. 
However, the project was programmed to start before the Council knew of the Salix 
grant and had already put in place sufficient funding for the scheme, so the project is 
not dependent on Salix funding. Should the Salix deadlines be met then the Council 
will reduce the amount of borrowing in relation to this scheme. 

 
8.2 Procurement 

8.2.1  Strategic Procurement (SP) note that this report relates to the approval of awards for 
Chestnuts Primary School –– Award of Construction Contract 
(Construction Contract Award) to provide External Envelope and Building Services 
Improvements.  

  
8.2.2 SP support the recommendations in this report in accordance with Contract Standing 

Orders clause 7.0.1. (b) 10.01.01 (a), and 9.07.3 
 

8.2.3 Pursuant to CSO 7.01(b) and Regulation 33 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, 
SP confirms that tenderers were invited to Tender through the LCP Major Works 2019 
Framework under Lot 2.1b, Education and leisure.  

 
8.2.4 Compliant tenders were received from 3 contractors with further clarifications needed to 

achieve the final price. 
  
8.2.5 SP note that tender returns were evaluated independently by the Quality Panel prior to 

release of the Price element of the Tender. Kind Diamond Consortium Ltd scored the 
highest in quality and in price, scoring 92.8% overall. 

 
8.2.6 SP notes that as per section 8 of this report, funding is available for this Contract. 
 
8.2.6 SP support the recommendations within this report and have no objections with awarding 

this Contract to Kind Diamond Consortium Ltd for £3,691,165.66. 
 
8.3  Legal 
 
8.3.1 The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) has been consulted in the 

preparation of this report. 
 
8.3.2. The Council has followed a competitive procurement using the London Construction 

Programme (LCP) Major Works Framework Agreement. The LCP Major Works 
Framework Agreement was set up by the Council in accordance with procurement 
legislation and its use is also permitted by Contract Standing Order 7.  

 

Page 6



 

 
 
Page 7 

 

8.3.3. The decision to award this contract will be a Key Decision as it involves expenditure of 
more than £500,000.  The award must therefore comply with the Council’s governance 
processes in respect of Key Decisions including publication of the contract in the 
Forward Plan (see CSO 3.01 (d). 

 

8.3.4. The Leader has power, between meetings of the Cabinet, to take decisions ordinarily 
reserved for Cabinet (see CSO 16.02) so may approve the award of this contract.  The 
Leader may also approve the issue of a letter of intent up to 10% of the value of the 
contract. 

 
8.3.5 The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) sees no legal reasons preventing 

the Leader from approving the recommendations in the report. 
 
   
8.4  Equality  

8.4.1  The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have due 
regard to the need to:  

  
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act.  
 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 
characteristics and people who do not.  
 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not.   

  
The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and 
sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the 
duty.  
  
The proposed decision is to request approval to award a contract to Kind Diamond 
Consortium Ltd up to the value of £3,691,165.66 to undertake works to the building 
infrastructure and building fabric. It was identified that the condition and suitability 
deficiencies at Chestnuts Primary School are a high priority for major works due to issues 
relating to health and safety or school closure risks.  
  
As an organisation carrying out a public function on behalf of a public body, Kind 
Diamond Consortium Ltd will be obliged to have due regard for the need to achieve the 
three aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty as stated above.  

 
 

8.1.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed for Chestnuts Primary School, 
included as Appendix A to this report, and uploaded on to the Haringey Council 
website. The EqIA raises no equalities concerns, with the proposed works being 
conducted in phases, to ensure there is minimal interruption to service provision. The 
expected impact on protected characteristic groups is either neutral or positive. The 

Page 7



 

 
 
Page 8 

 

following measures have ensured that the works comply with the Council’s equalities 
duties: 
 

 No reduction in service provision, either during the works or once they are 
completed. 

 Services will be improved through better buildings and IT, making services 
more accessible and effective; 

 Improved access arrangements  

 New heating will also be installed, making the environment more comfortable 
for all;  

 Services will be improved through better buildings and IT, making services 
more accessible and effective; 

 Improved access arrangements  

 New heating will also be installed, making the environment more comfortable 
for all;  

 

 
9 Use of Appendices 
 
9.2  Appendix A – Part B 
 
10 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 
 
10.1  List of background documents:  
 

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information.  Exempt information is under 
the following categories (identified in amended Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972): Information relating to financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the statutory holding that information). 

Page 8



 

 
 
Page 1 
 

Report for Cabinet Member Signing, Scheduled for 2nd July 2021 
 
Title: Lordship Lane Primary School - Building Services Improvement and External Envelope Works 
– Award of Construction Contract 

       
Report authorised by: Ann Graham, Director of Children’s Services  
  
Lead Officer:  Sylvester Olutayo, Senior Project Manager 
Telephone 07956151156 email: Sylvester.olutayo@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward affected: Woodside   
 
Report for Key/Non-Key Decision: Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 To request approval to award a contract to Mulalley and Company Limited up to the value of 

£3,416,532.90 to undertake building services improvement and external envelope condition 
works at Lordship Lane Primary School pursuant to contract standing order 16.02.  

 
1.2 Pursuant to Contract Standing Order (CSO) 16.02 to approve the issuance of a letter of intent. 

 
2. Draft Cabinet Member Introduction  

2.1 As this report is being presented to Cabinet Member Children, Education and Families for a 
decision, Cabinet Member introduction is not required. 

 
3. Recommendations 

 
For Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Families pursuant to Contract Standing Order 
16.02 to: 
 

3.1 Approve an award to Mulalley and Company Limited of £3,105,939.00; 
 

3.2 Approve a client construction contingency of 10% that equates to £310,593.90 which will be 
strictly managed under change control governance arrangements; 

 
3.3 Approve the issuance of a letter of intent for up to 10% of the contract value totalling 

£310,593.90. 
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

4.1 A major review of the condition and suitability of the Children’s Services estate has been 
undertaken which has informed the Children’s Service’s asset management plan (CSAMP).  This 
identified condition and suitability deficiencies in the primary, secondary, and wider Children’s 
Service estate that need addressing in the short, medium, and long-term.  Lordship Lane Primary 
School is high priority for major works due to issues relating to health and safety or school 
closure risks. 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



 

 
 
Page 2 

 

4.2  In 2018 an initial brief was given to undertake the most immediate (short term) health and safety, 
compliance, and resilience work. These findings included fire compartmentation, fire doors and 
heating resilience and were subject to a separate award under delegated powers. 

 
4.3 In 2019 a further commission was given to further investigate and address urgent works relating 

to the condition of building services (ie heating, electrics and plumbing), external envelope (ie 
roofs, windows) and boundary security.  
 

4.4 The scheme at Lordship Lane Primary School has been granted an allocation of funding 
(£539,000) from the public sector decarbonisation programme, a government initiative 
sponsored by the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by 
Salix (Salix works). The grant will be used to part fund the scheme thus reducing the amount of 
borrowing that the Council will need to undertake. The terms of the grant are that the relevant 
works need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. If this date is missed, then there is a 
risk that the grant allocation will need to be repaid.   
 

4.5 The works at Lordship Lane Primary School has been developed into 2 phases in order to 
minimise disruption to the school (referenced in 5.2) and achieve the criteria for Salix Public 
Sector Decarbonisation grant funding.  This construction award report requests a decision on 
the procurement of a contractor to undertake Phase 1 - building services improvement and 
external envelope condition works. Phase 2, which consists of the construction of a new nursery 
will be the result of a further tender exercise and decision later this year. This decision is for 
Phase 1 only. The scheme of works developed is to achieve the following: 

 

 Salix Public Sector Decarbonisation grant funding works (Window replacement, LED 

Lighting, insertion of loft Insulation, installation of insulated panels, install new building 

management system);  

 Install new heating system including distribution pipework, radiators and heating controls 

throughout the school, prior to the heating season starting in October; 

 Replace domestic water system throughout the building including new tanks, booster 

pump sets and water heaters;  

 Repair works to drainage pipework; 

 Overhaul of pitched roofs replacing slipped and missing tiles; 

 Re-covering flat roof areas with liquid waterproofing solution; 

 Structural repairs to first floor gym, and replacement of its external fire escape doors 

 Repairs to external masonry – brickwork and re-pointing; 

 Install new electrical systems to include: fire alarm, CCTV, access control and intruder 

alarm systems;  

 Demolition of existing nursery building, associated landscaping and installation of new 

playground; and 

 Other external works to include moving of existing climbing frame, installation of new 

canopy/external teaching space and provision of external storage. 

 
4.6 A Cabinet Member decision has been requested in July 2021 to enable early mobilisation of the 

contractor prior to the school summer holiday, which will allow site establishment, ordering of a 
new boiler and other long lead-in materials required to be completed in September to de-risk 
completion prior to the heating season. This would allow maximum access to the school during 
the summer holidays to complete the central and communal areas pipework distribution works, 
and to ensure full installation of scaffolding to the perimeter of the school building safely before 
pupils and staff return. If we do not have sufficient time to complete these works during the 

Page 10



 

 
 
Page 3 

 

summer holidays it will impact on the sequencing of work and be more disruptive to the school. 
The school has already experienced an extremely challenging year due to the Covid pandemic 
and other urgently required health and safety compliance works. 

 
5. Alternative Options Considered 

 
5.1 Do nothing – a decision not to support this award of construction contract will result in the 

Councils failure to suitably maintain its education estate by undertaking essential condition 
improvements. This would increase the likelihood of reactive works which will create greater 
disruption and cost to the Council and potentially result in the loss of education days. All of which 
would undoubtedly impact on the quality of teaching and learning. 

 
5.2 Delaying a decision until July cabinet 2021 would add additional time to the programme. Not 

being able to award a contract and place orders at the earliest opportunity in July would severely 
increase the risk of not achieving the required volume of work over the summer holiday period 
(as outlined in 4.6 of this report) and may put the school at risk of closure. Minimising disruption 
to learning and the safety and wellbeing of both pupils and staff is of paramount importance. 
Although this is an intrusive programme of works, a comprehensive sequencing programme has 
been prepared in full consultation and support of the school, which seeks to maximise all school 
holiday periods to minimise disruption. The criteria for the completion of carbon grant funded 
works would also be impacted on. 

 
6. Background Information 
 
6.1  London Borough of Haringey (Haringey) are seeking to identify and address building condition 

and suitability issues across the Education/schools estate. 
 

6.2 Initial condition and suitability surveys followed by comprehensive feasibility studies have 
evolved an extensive Children’s Capital Programme which seeks to support essential condition 
improvements across the education estate. 

 
6.3 From this data, Lordship Lane Primary School was considered high priority and as a result was 

placed in wave 1 of the programme and is 1 of 8 primary school’s sites in this initial wave of 
essential condition work.  

 

6.4 This condition project will bring a number of benefits to the school and the Council, with the 
primary objective of providing improved educational environments for Children in line with 
Haringey’s borough plan. Along with improving educational outcomes, this project will 
significantly reduce the risk of a health and safety incident or school closure through condition 
failure such as mechanical failure, such as mechanical plant breakdown or roof leaks. The 
project will also help the school reduce its energy demands and relieve some budgetary 
pressure. 

 
6.5 Alongside this it will support the Borough’s carbon reduction and climate change ambition by 

delivering approx. 39.95 tCO2pa carbon reduction through the installation of energy efficient 
measures such as double glazing and roof insulation.  This work also benefits the Council in 
reducing the reactive maintenance requirements at the school in future by economically fixing 
the root cause of the condition issues within a single project whilst avoiding additional temporary 
repairs costs. To enable these works, the Council successfully secured external funding from 
the government (through SALIX funding) to a value of £539,000. 

 
 

Page 11



 

 
 
Page 4 

 

6.6 As set out in section 4, the work at Lordship Lane Primary School is divided into 2 phases – 
Phase 1 - building services improvement and external envelope condition work and Phase 2 - 
new nursery building. This decision is requested for Phase 1 only. 

 

6.7 Procurement of a contractor has been undertaken on a traditional basis, with the works designed 
to Stage 4 of the Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) Plan. The form of contract will be 
JCT Standard Building Contract with Quantities 2016. 

 

6.8 As part of the RIBA stage 2-4 design the following surveys and investigations were completed: 

 Below ground drainage survey  

 Flat roof investigations  

 Investigation to roof voids  

 Temporary accommodation survey 

 Asbestos refurbishment and demolition survey and additional asbestos sampling 

 Lead paint survey  

 Window and external door surveys  

 PAS:128 Utilities Survey  

 Topographical Survey  

 Review of statutory authority record drawings.  
 

6.9 A Building Control application has been submitted.  A planning application is not required for 
Phase 1. 

 

6.10 Following completion of the developed design, the proposal was issued to the construction 
market via London Construction Programme Major Works Framework (LCP 2019) Lot 2.1b North 
Education and Leisure. Two tenders were received on the 27 May 2021. Both tenders have been 
evaluated on a 60% cost and 40% quality by an independent evaluation panel. Arithmetical 
adjustments have been applied to the tenders during the clarification process with the results of 
this assessment shown below: 
 

Tenderer Price Price 
Score 
(60%) 

Moderated 
Quality Score 
(40%) 

Combined 
Cost and 
Quality Score 

Final 
Ranking 

Mulalley and 
Company 
Limited 

£3,105,939 60 27.2 87.20 1 

 
6.11 Details of the evaluation of other tenderers’ returns are set out in the Part B of this report. The 

assessment concludes with a recommendation to award a construction contract to Mulalley and 
Company Limited up to the value of £3,416,532.90 (tender value £3,105,939 plus construction 
risk of £310,539.90). 
 

6.12 The quantity surveyor for this project is satisfied with the pricing offered by Mulalley & Company 
Limited against the Pre-Tender Estimate (PTE). A detailed analysis of the tender returns against 
the PTE is provided within the Tender Report.  
 

6.13 The total projected cost of the scheme is set out in the table below and compared to the 

budget. 

 

Page 12



 

 
 
Page 5 

 

 

6.14 The school’s Headteacher and Governor representative were involved in the design process, 
invited to be part of the evaluation panel and support the project. They are keen for the project 
to progress over the summer to help minimise further disruption to the school year. 

 
7 Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 

 
7.1 This project proposal supports outcomes as outlined in the Borough Plan 2019-23, in particular: 

All projects commissioned by Officers of the Council are expected to align with this plan and will 
be reflected in key capital project documentation such as project briefs, design briefs, business 
cases, project initiation documents (PID) and award reports. The relevant Borough Outcome for 
this project is: People - our vision is a Haringey where strong families, strong networks and 
strong communities nurture all residents to live well and achieve their potential. 

 
7.2  Lordship Lane Primary School falls into wave 1 (priority 1) of the Children’s Service’s asset 

management plan (CSAMP) and is therefore procured in accordance with the priorities set out 
in the Children’s Capital Programme.  

 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer, Procurement, Corporate 

Governance, Equalities). 
 
8.1  Finance 

8.1 1  The recommendation of this report is to award a contract to Mulalley and Company Limited of 
£3.106m for the phase 1 works. A client construction contingency of £0.311m is held. In addition 
to this contract sum, there will be other costs in delivering the scheme. These are PM fees, 
design fees, QS fees and sundry other costs resulting in a projected cost of £4.955m for the 
scheme which can be contained within the overall Children’s Service approved 2021/22 capital 
programme. 

 
8.1.2 The scheme has been granted an allocation of funding £0.539m from the public sector 

decarbonisation programme, a government initiative sponsored by the Department for Business, 
Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by Salix. The terms of the grant are that the 
relevant works need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. If this date is missed, then 
there is a risk that the grant allocation will need to be repaid. However, the project was 
programmed to start before the Council knew of the Salix grant and had already put in place 
sufficient funding for the scheme, so the project is not dependent on Salix funding. Should the 
Salix deadlines be met then the Council will reduce the amount of borrowing in relation to this 
scheme.  

 
 
8.1.3 Forecast annual expenditure: 

Description Total projected cost 

Phase1 Construction £3,105,939 

Other  £1,849,384 

Total £4,955,323 

Page 13



 

 
 
Page 6 

 

 
 

8.2 Procurement 

8.2.1 Strategic Procurement (SP) note that this report relates to the approval of awards for Lordship 
Lane Primary School Building Services and External Envelope Improvement Works Phase 1 
(Construction Contract Award) to Mulalley and Company Limited. 
 

8.2.2 SP support the recommendations in this report in accordance with Contract Standing Orders 
clause 7.0.1. (b) 10.01.01 (a), and 16.02. 

 
8.2.3 Pursuant to CSO 7.01(b) and Regulation 33 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, SP 

confirms that tenderers were invited to Tender through the LCP Major Works 2019 Framework 
under Lot 2.1b, Education and leisure.  

 
8.2.4 Compliant tenders were received from two contractors with further clarifications needed to 

achieve the final price. 
  
8.2.5 SP note that tender returns were evaluated independently by the Quality Panel prior to release 

of the Price element of the Tender. Mulalley and Company Limited scored the highest in quality 
and in price, scoring 87.20% overall. 

 
8.2.6 SP notes that as per section 8.1.1 of this report, funding is available for this Contract. 
 
8.2.6 SP support the recommendations within this report and have no objections with awarding this 

Contract to Mulalley and Company Limited for value outlined in Section 1.1 of Part B of this 
report. 

 
8.3 Legal 
 
8.3.1 The Head of Legal and Governance has been consulted in the preparation of the report. 
 

8.3.2 Pursuant to Contract Standing Order 16.02 the Cabinet Member with the relevant portfolio 
responsibilities has authority to approve the recommendations in the report. 

 

8.3.3 The Head of Legal and Governance sees no legal reasons preventing the Cabinet Member for 
Children, Education and Families from approving the recommendations in the report. 

 
8.4  Equality  

8.4.1  The council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have due 
regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited 
under the Act; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected characteristics and 
people who do not; and  

 Previous 
years 
2018/2021 

2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 Total 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Expenditure  0.363 2.660 1.840 0.092 £4.955 

Page 14



 

 
 
Page 7 

 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and people who 
do not. 

 
The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and sexual orientation. 
Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the duty. 

 
The proposed decision is to approve the award of a contract to Mulalley and Company Limited 
up to the value stated in Section 1.1. of this report. It was identified that the condition and 
suitability deficiencies at Lordship Lane Primary School are a high priority for major works due 
to issues relating to health and safety, accessibility or school closure risks.  
 
The decision will deliver key benefits of improved educational outcomes, reduced health and 
safety risks for attendees and staff at the school, and better energy efficiency for the school. It 
is expected that this decision will lead to improved health and safety and accessibility for all 
students and members of staff.  A number of pupils are from disadvantaged backgrounds, 
eligible for free school meals and children looked after (in the care of the local authority for a day 
or more or who have been adopted from care), a range of minority ethnic backgrounds and 
speak English as an additional language. Evidence shows that, overall, performance of 
disadvantaged pupils is lower than that of other pupils both at the school and nationally. The 
proposed decision is expected to support improved educational outcomes for all students, 
including those from minority ethnic backgrounds, with special education needs and who receive 
support through the pupil premium, who are more likely to face barriers to education. No negative 
consequences are identified for those who share a protected characteristic, and it is concluded 
that the works will have a wholly positive impact by improving the health and safety of Lordship 
Lane Primary School, including attendees and staff with protected characteristics under the 
Equality Act 2010. The proposed decision will therefore support equality of opportunity across 
all students. 
  
As an organisation carrying out a public function on behalf of a public body, Mulalley and 
Company Limited will be obliged to have due regard for the need to achieve the three aims of 
the Public Sector Equality Duty as stated above. Appropriate contract management 
arrangements will be established to ensure that the delivery of the major works does not result 
in any preventable or disproportionate inequality.  

 
   

9 Use of Appendices 
 
9.1  Appendix A – Part B 
 
10 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 
 
10.1  List of background documents:  
 

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information.  Exempt information is under the 
following categories (identified in amended Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972): 
Information relating to financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Page 1 
 

Report for Cabinet Member Signing, Scheduled for 2nd July 2021 
 
Title: West Green Primary School - Building Services Improvement and External Envelope Works – 
Award of Construction Contract 

     
Report authorised by: Ann Graham, Director of Children’s Services  
  
Lead Officer:  Sylvester Olutayo, Senior Project Manager, Major Projects  
Telephone 07956151156 email: Sylvester.olutayo@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward affected: St Ann’s   
 
Report for Key/Non-Key Decision: Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 To request approval to award a contract to Mulalley and Company Limited up to the value of 

£2,270,002.90 to undertake building services improvement and external envelope condition 
works at West Green Primary School pursuant to contract standing order 16.02.  
 

1.2 Pursuant to Contract Standing Order (CSO) 16.02 to approve the issuance of a letter of intent. 
 

2. Draft Cabinet Member Introduction  

2.1 As this report is being presented to Cabinet Member Children, Education and Families for a 
decision, Cabinet Member introduction is not required. 

 
3. Recommendations 

 
For Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Families pursuant to Contract Standing Order 
16.02 to: 
 

3.1 Approve an award to Mulalley and Company Limited of £2,063,639; 
 

3.2 Approve a client construction contingency of 10% that equates to £206,363.90, which will be 
strictly managed under change control governance arrangements; 

 
3.3 Approve the issuance of a letter of intent for up to 10% of the contract value totalling 

£206,363.90. 
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

4.1 A major review of the condition and suitability of the Children’s Services estate has been 
undertaken which has informed the Children’s Service’s asset management plan (CSAMP).  This 
identified condition and suitability deficiencies in the primary, secondary, and wider Children’s 
Service estate that need addressing in the short, medium, and long-term.  West Green Primary 
School is high priority for major works due to issues relating to health and safety or school 
closure risks. 

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 5



 

 
 
Page 2 

 

4.2  In 2018 an initial brief was given to undertake the most immediate (short term) health and safety, 
compliance, and resilience work. These findings included fire compartmentation, fire doors and 
heating resilience and were subject to a separate award under delegated powers. 

 
4.3 In 2019 a further commission was given to further investigate and address urgent works relating 

to the condition of building services (ie heating, electrics and plumbing), external envelope (ie 
roofs, windows) and boundary security.  
 

4.4 The scheme at West Green Primary School has been granted an allocation of funding 
(£325,000) from the public sector decarbonisation programme, a government initiative 
sponsored by the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by 
Salix (Salix works). The grant will be used to part fund the scheme thus reducing the amount of 
borrowing that the Council will need to undertake. The terms of the grant are that the relevant 
works need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. If this date is missed, then there is a 
risk that the grant allocation will need to be repaid.   

 
4.5 The works at West Green Primary School has been developed into 2 phases in order to minimise 

disruption to the school (referenced in 5.2) and achieve the criteria for Salix Public Sector 
Decarbonisation grant funding.  This construction award report requests a decision on the 
procurement of a contractor to undertake Phase 2 – building services improvement and external 
envelope condition works. Phase 1, which consists of the demolition of a redundant/end of life 
modular unit, has been tendered and awarded under delegated approval at c£17,400, as it is 
intended to complete Phase 1 during mid-July before the main works commence. This decision 
is for Phase 2 only. The scheme of works developed is to achieve the following: 

 

 Salix Public Sector Decarbonisation grant funding works (Window replacement, LED 

Lighting, insertion of loft Insulation, installation of insulated panels, install new building 

management system);  

 Install new heating system including distribution pipework, radiators and heating controls 

throughout the school, prior to the heating season starting in October; 

 Replace domestic water system throughout the building including new tanks, booster 

pump sets and water heaters;  

 Completion of kitchen services upgrade by the end of September;  

 Overhaul of pitched roofs replacing slipped and missing tiles 

 Structural repair to timber beams; 

 Re-covering flat roof with liquid waterproofing solution; 

 Replacement of 3no. External fire escape doors; 

 Repairs to external masonry – brickwork and re-pointing; and 

 Re-build of partially demolished boundary wall on Terront Road.  

 
4.6 A Cabinet Member decision has been requested in July 2021 to enable early mobilisation of the 

contractor prior to the school summer holiday, which will allow site establishment, ordering of a 
new boiler and other long lead-in materials required to be completed in September to de-risk 
completion prior to the heating season. This will allow maximum access to the school during the 
summer holidays to ensure full installation of a working platform/crash deck in the school hall, 
and a temporary roof, which are required to support installation of new heating services, roof 
strengthening and replacement of hall roof lights/windows safely before pupils and staff return. 
If we do not have sufficient time to complete the safety crash deck in the school hall during the 
summer holidays it will impact on the sequencing of work and be more disruptive to the school. 
Inability to complete these works will put the school at risk of closure and unable to open from 

Page 18



 

 
 
Page 3 

 

the start of the Autumn Term.  The school has already experienced an extremely challenging 
year due to the Covid pandemic and other urgently required health and safety compliance works. 
 

5. Alternative Options Considered 
 

5.1 Do nothing – a decision not to support this award of construction contract will result in the 
Councils failure to suitably maintain its education estate by undertaking essential condition 
improvements. This would increase the likelihood of reactive works which will create greater 
disruption and cost to the Council and potentially result in the loss of education days. All of which 
would undoubtedly impact on the quality of teaching and learning. 

 
5.2  Delaying a decision until July cabinet 2021 would add additional time to the programme. Not 

being able to award a contract and place orders at the earliest opportunity in July would severely 
increase the risk of not achieving the required volume of work over the summer holiday period 
(as outlined in 4.6 of this report) and put the school at risk of closure. Minimising disruption to 
learning and the safety and wellbeing of both pupils and staff is of paramount importance. 
Although this is an intrusive programme of works, a comprehensive sequencing programme has 
been prepared in full consultation and support of the school, which seeks to maximise all school 
holiday periods to minimise disruption. The criteria for the completion of carbon grant funded 
works would also be impacted on. 

 
6. Background Information 
 
6.1  London Borough of Haringey (Haringey) are seeking to identify and address building condition 

and suitability issues across the Education/schools estate. 
 

6.2 Initial condition and suitability surveys followed by comprehensive feasibility studies have 
evolved an extensive Children’s Capital Programme which seeks to support essential condition 
improvements across the education estate. 
 

6.3 From this data, West Green Primary School was considered high priority and as a result was 
placed in wave 1 of the programme and is 1 of 8 primary school’s sites in this initial wave of 
essential condition work.  
 

6.4 This condition project will bring a number of benefits to the school and the Council, with the 
primary objective of providing improved educational environments for Children in line with 
Haringey’s borough plan. Along with improving educational outcomes, this project will 
significantly reduce the risk of a health and safety incident or school closure through condition 
failure such as mechanical failure, such as mechanical plant breakdown or roof leaks. The 
project will also help the school reduce its energy demands and relieve some budgetary 
pressure. 

 

6.5 Alongside this it will support the Borough’s carbon reduction and climate change ambition by 
delivering approx. 20.44 tCO2pa carbon reduction through the installation of energy efficient 
measures such as double glazing and roof insulation.  This work also benefits the Council in 
reducing the reactive maintenance requirements at the school in future by economically fixing 
the root cause of the condition issues within a single project whilst avoiding additional temporary 
repairs costs. To enable these works, the Council successfully secured external funding from 
the government (through SALIX funding) to a value of £325,000. 
 

6.6 As set out in section 4, the work at West Green Primary School is divided into 2 phases – Phase 
1 - demolition of a redundant/end of life modular unit and Phase 2 - building services 
improvement and external envelope condition work. This decision is requested for Phase 2 only. 

Page 19



 

 
 
Page 4 

 

 

6.7 Procurement of a contractor has been undertaken on a traditional basis, with the works designed 
to Stage 4 of the Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) Plan. The form of contract will be 
JCT Standard Building Contract with Quantities 2016. 

 

6.8 As part of the RIBA stage 2-4 design the following surveys and investigations were completed: 

 Below ground drainage survey  

 Flat roof investigations  

 Investigation to roof voids  

 Temporary accommodation survey 

 Asbestos refurbishment and demolition survey and additional asbestos sampling 

 Lead paint survey  

 Window and external door surveys  

 PAS:128 Utilities Survey  

 Topographical Survey  

 Review of statutory authority record drawings. 
 

6.9 A Building Control application has been submitted.  A planning application is not required for 
Phase 2. 

 

6.10 Following completion of the developed design, the proposal was issued to the construction 
market via London Construction Programme Major Works Framework (LCP 2019) Lot 2.1b North 
Education and Leisure. Three tenders were received on the 24 May 2021. All tenders have been 
evaluated on a 60% cost and 40% quality by an independent evaluation panel. Arithmetical 
adjustments have been applied to the tenders during the clarification process with the results of 
this assessment shown below: 

 

Tenderer Price Price Score 
(60%) 

Moderated 
Quality Score 
(40%) 

Combined 
Cost and 
Quality Score 
(100%) 

Final Ranking 

Mulalley and 
Company Ltd 

£2,063,639.00 60.00 34.40 94.40 1 

 
6.11 The assessment concludes with a recommendation to award a construction contract to Mulalley 

and Company Limited up to the value of £2,270,002.90 (tender value £2,063,639 plus 
construction risk of £206,363.90). 
 

6.12 The quantity surveyor for this project is satisfied with the pricing offered by Mulalley & Co 
Limited against the Pre-Tender Estimate (PTE). A detailed analysis of the tender returns 
against the PTE is provided within the Tender Report.  
 

6.13 The total projected cost of the scheme is set out in the table below and compared to the 

budget. 

 

 

Description Total projected cost 

Construction £2,063,639.00 

Page 20



 

 
 
Page 5 

 

 

* includes a small contribution for the Phase 1 demolition works, as described in 4.5. 

 

6.14 The school’s Headteacher and Chair and Governor representative were involved in the design 
process, part of the evaluation panel and support the project. They are keen for the project to 
progress over the summer to help minimise further disruption to the school year. 

 
7 Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 

 
7.1 This project proposal supports outcomes as outlined in the Borough Plan 2019-23, in particular: 

All projects commissioned by Officers of the Council are expected to align with this plan and will 
be reflected in key capital project documentation such as project briefs, design briefs, business 
cases, project initiation documents (PID) and award reports. The relevant Borough Outcome for 
this project is: People - our vision is a Haringey where strong families, strong networks and 
strong communities nurture all residents to live well and achieve their potential. 

 
7.2  West Green Primary School falls into wave 1 (priority 1) of the Children’s Service’s asset 

management plan (CSAMP) and is therefore procured in accordance with the priorities set out 
in the Children’s Capital Programme.  

 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer, Procurement, Corporate 

Governance, Equalities). 
 
8.1  Finance 

8.1 1  The recommendation of this report is to award a contract to Mulalley and Company Limited of 
£2.064m for the phase 2 works. A client construction contingency of £0.206m is held. In addition 
to this contract sum, there will be other costs in delivering the scheme. These are PM fees, 
design fees, QS fees and sundry other costs resulting in a projected cost of £3.559m for the 
scheme which can be contained within the overall Children’s Service approved 2021/22 capital 
programme. 

 
8.1.2 The scheme has been granted an allocation of funding £0.325m from the public sector 

decarbonisation programme, a government initiative sponsored by the Department for Business, 
Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by Salix. The terms of the grant are that the 
relevant works need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. If this date is missed, then 
there is a risk that the grant allocation will need to be repaid. However, the project was 
programmed to start before the Council knew of the Salix grant and had already put in place 
sufficient funding for the scheme, so the project is not dependent on Salix funding. Should the 
Salix deadlines be met then the Council will reduce the amount of borrowing in relation to this 
scheme.  

 
 
 
8.1.3 Forecast annual expenditure: 

Other*  £1,495,781.75 

Total £3,559,420.75 

 Previous 
years 
2018/2021 

2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 Total 

Page 21



 

 
 
Page 6 

 

 
8.2 Procurement 

8.2.1  Strategic Procurement (SP) note that this report relates to the approval of awards for West Green 
Primary School Building Services and External Envelope Improvement Works Phase 2 
(Construction Contract Award) to Mulalley and Company Limited  

 
8.2.1 SP support the recommendations in this report in accordance with Contract Standing Orders 

clause 7.0.1. (b) 10.01.01 (a), and 16.02. 
 
8.2.2 Pursuant to CSO 7.01(b) and Regulation 33 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, SP 

confirms that tenderers were invited to Tender through the LCP Major Works 2019 Framework 
under Lot 2.1b, Education and leisure.  

 
8.2.3 Compliant tenders were received from three contractors with further clarifications needed to 

achieve the final price. 
  
8.2.4 SP note that tender returns were evaluated independently by the Quality Panel prior to release 

of the Price element of the Tender. Mulalley and Company Limited scored the highest in quality 
and in price, scoring 94.4% overall. 

 
8.2.5 SP notes that as per section 8.1.1 of this report, funding is available for this Contract. 

 
8.2.6   SP support the recommendations within this report and have no objections with awarding this 

Contract to Mulalley and Company Limited for value outlined in Section 1.1 of Part B of this 
report. 

 
8.3 Legal 
 
8.3.1 The Head of Legal and Governance has been consulted in the preparation of the report. 
 

8.3.2 Pursuant to Contract Standing Order 16.02 the Cabinet Member with the relevant portfolio 
responsibilities has authority to approve the recommendations in the report. 

 

8.3.3 The Head of Legal and Governance sees no legal reasons preventing the Cabinet Member for 
Children, Education and Families from approving the recommendations in the report. 

 
8.4  Equality  

8.4.1  The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have due 
regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited 
under the Act; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected characteristics and 
people who do not; and  

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and people who 
do not. 
 

8.4.2  The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and sexual orientation. 
Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the duty. 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Expenditure  0.337 2.528 0.628 0.067 £3.56 

Page 22



 

 
 
Page 7 

 

 
8.4.3  The proposed decision is to approve the award of a contract to Mulalley and Company Limted up 

to the value stated in Section 1.1. of this report. It was identified that the condition and suitability 
deficiencies at West Green Primary School are a high priority for major works due to issues 
relating to health and safety, accessibility or school closure risks.  

 
8.4.4  The decision will deliver key benefits of improved educational outcomes, reduced health and 

safety risks for attendees and staff at the school, and better energy efficiency for the school. It 
is expected that this decision will lead to improved health and safety and accessibility for all 
pupils and members of staff. A large majority of pupils are from a range of minority ethnic 
backgrounds and speak English as an additional language, with the proportion of pupils known 
to be eligible for support through the pupil premium well above that found nationally. In addition, 
an above-average proportion of pupils have special educational needs support. The proportion 
of pupils with a statement of special educational needs or an education, health and care plan is 
also well above that found nationally. The proposed decision is expected to support improved 
educational outcomes for all students, including those from minority ethnic backgrounds, with 
special education needs and who receive support through the pupil premium, who are more 
likely to face barriers to education. No negative consequences are identified for those who share 
a protected characteristic, and it is concluded that the works will have a wholly positive impact 
by improving the health and safety of West Green Primary School, including attendees and staff 
with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010. The proposed decision will therefore 
support equality of opportunity across all students. 

  
8.4.5  As an organisation carrying out a public function on behalf of a public body, Mulalley and 

Company Limited will be obliged to have due regard for the need to achieve the three aims of 
the Public Sector Equality Duty as stated above. Appropriate contract management 
arrangements will be established to ensure that the delivery of the major works does not result 
in any preventable or disproportionate inequality.  

 
9 Use of Appendices 
 
9.1 Appendix A – Part B 
 
10 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 
 
10.1  List of background documents:  
 

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information.  Exempt information is under the 
following categories (identified in amended Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972): 
Information relating to financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 25 Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 27 Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 29 Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Chestnuts Primary School - External Envelope and Building Services Improvement - Award of Construction Contract
	4 Lordship Lane Primary School - Building Services Improvement and External Envelope Works - Award of Construction Contract
	5 West Green Primary School - Building Services Improvement and External Envelope Works - Award of Construction Contract
	7 EXEMPT - Chestnuts Primary School - External Envelope and Building Services Improvement - Award of Construction Contract
	8 EXEMPT - Lordship Lane Primary School - Building Services Improvement and External Envelope Works - Award of Construction Contract
	9 EXEMPT - West Green Primary School - Building Services Improvement and External Envelope Works - Award of Construction Contract

